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The Dempsey-Reynolds-Taylor house is situated on a side street at the edge of the 
Leaksville business district in the city of Eden. The original section of the residence 
is an early nineteenth-century frame. block; behind this section is a one-and-a-half sto~y 
brick structure, probably erected during the early nineteenth century, that may be a 
rare surviving example of a detached kitchen. A two-and-a-half story, single-pile 
frame section was added to the original frame residence near the close of the nineteenth 
century; this section is now the house's main block. The 'house received a series of 
rear additions during the first decades of the twentieth century and attained its 
present size by the early 1920s. 

The early nineteenth-century frame portion of the house, which is one of the 
oldest surviving structures in Eden, retains much of its Federal style interior finish. 
The two-and-a-half story main block is a fine, well-preserved s~ecimen of Italianate and 
Queen Anne design. 

The exterior of the house's original frame section was substantially remodeled when 
it was converted to an appendage of the main block at the close of the nineteenth century, 
and as the house was further expanded during the early 1900s. The exact form of the early 
nineteenth~century residence is unknown. Surviving archit@ctural evidence suggests, how­
eyer, that the original house was one-and-a-half stories or two full floors in height 
and had chimneys at one or both gable ends that provided fireplaces for the two first 
floor rooms. Family tr'adition recalls that the original portion of the house was turned 
ninety degrees when it was made an appendage of the present main block. This tradition is 
supported by the fact that the door which appears to have been the principal entrance to 
th,e original house now f~ces north rather than west toward Henry Street. The original 
section of the dwelling is now perpendicular to the present main block and directly 
adj oins the rear of the main block's northern (left} portion. 

The exterior appearance of the original section of the house reflects the changes 
m,ade during the late-nineteenth and early-twentieth centuries. The slope of the roof 
was broadened during that period to shelter additional space for a rear· second- story 
bathroom and to provide additional living space sheltered by a six-bay, shed-roofed dormer 
that carries across the entire north elevation of the section. A porch was erected along 
the north elevation of the section at the time the present main block was erected; this 
porch has the same turned posts with decorative brackets seen on the front_porch of the 
main block. Between 1915 and 1921 a latticed shed was built adjoining the porch. l 

In contrast to the remodeled exterior, the first floor interior of the house's original 
section retains its early nineteenth century plan and most of its Federal style finish. 
The first floor follows a two-room or hall-and-parlor arrangement; the stair rises four 
steps along the rear wall of the larger room to a door, and rose along the wall separating 
the two rooms to the second story before the steps behind the door were removed. A six­
panel door provides a passage between the two first floor rooms. 
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The larger of the two first floor rooms is finished with plaster over a plain wainscot 
and a three-part molded chair rail, while the smaller chamber has a chair rail but omits 
the wainscot. Surviving original door and window surrounds are thinly molded Federal ones; 
doors have six flat panels trimmed with thin applied moldings. The smaller of the two 
rooms has a handsome Federal mantel with series of thin moldings applied to the pilasters 
and frieze and around the fire opening. The mantel in the larger of the two rooms is a 
typical late nineteenth century facing with 'paired sawn brackets above the pilasters sup­
porting a plain shelf. 

The open portion of the stair rises four ,steps to a six-panel door. This section of 
the stair has open stringers and a molded handrail, plain square-in-section balusters, and 
a thin newel topped with a simple molding. A plain wainscot and simply molded chair rail 
run along the wall, parallel to tpe stair and ferminate in a thin pilaster opposite the 
newel. ' 

The upper story rooms of the house's original sect'ion were completely remodelled 
during the early twentieth century and have plain interior trim. 

The history of the brick structure at the rear of the house that serves as,~he 
kitchen is not known for certain. Strong family tradition recalls that the structure 
provided separate kitchen facilities for the early nineteenth century frame portion o~ 
the house, and the building has served as a ,kitchen throughout the twentieth century. I 

Whether the structure was originally erected for kitchen purposes is not known; it may 
have served the Dempsey family or earlier owners of the land as a residence. 

The rectangular brick structure is laid up in common bond and has a steeply pitched 
gable roof. A broad chimney with a single pair of stepped shoulders, also laid up in 
common bond, occupies the south gable,epd and furnishes a large hearth. The structure 
has three small windows: one alongside the chimney on the south gable end; one in the 
center of the structure's east side; and a centrally placed attic window in the north 
gable end. The interior of the brick structure, which has a single room, has been re­
modeled for use as a modern kitchen, but a broad hearth still occupies most of the 
room's southern wall. The attic is no longer accessible. 

The late nineteenth century main block of the house is three bays wide and one bay 
deep beneath a gable roof. A decorative gable is set over the center bay of the facade. 
All three gables of the main block are decorated with alternating bands of diamond and 
octagonal shingles. Four gable-roofed dormers, two on the front of the house and two 
on the rear, were installed about 1940. The roof is trimmed with a molded cornice and 
pendant drop brackets. Two interior chimneys at the rear of the block provide four 
fireplaces for the main section and two for adjoining rear portions of the house. 
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Two projecting, three-sided bays with two-aver-two sash windows flank the centrally 
placed entrance. The bays are embellished with molded and turned ornament. A porch 
carries between the two projecting bays; it has a three-sided shape similar to that of 
the bays, and like the bays it is well embellished with molded and turned ornament. The 
porch shelters the principal entrance to the house, a two~leaf, four-panel door set in 
a plain, symmetrical surround. 

The interior of the main block follows a center hall plan one room deep. The stair 
rises in a single flight from the front of the hall to the rear. It boasts a molded, 
square-in-section newel, topped with a finial, whose chamfered corners are adorned with 
turned ornament. The elaborate balustrade consists of a molded handrail and cut-out 
boards separated. by thin vertical and horizontal members. 

All four rooms of the main block are finished in plaster above a deep, plain base­
board, and doors and windows are set in relatively simple three-part molded surrounds. 
Remaining original doors have four panels. The two first floor mantels, and the one in 
the northern second-story room, are typical Queen Anne facings, with characteristic, 
turned, beaded, and chamfered ornament. The mantal in the southern second-story room 
is an early twentieth century neo-Federal facing with a typical three-part arrangement. 

The projecting first floor facade bays provide additional space for the two parlors, 
and these spaces are framed by three-part s~rrounds and curved brackets adorned with 
spindles. The south parlor boasts an eight-pointed plaster ceiling medallion with heavy 
molded ornament. 

The major post-1900 addition to the house is a large, one-story shed wing direct12 behind the main block on the house's south (left) side, erected between 1908 and 1915. 
This wing contains a single room, the largest in the house, which has a row of three 
one-over-one sash windows. The most,notable feature of the room is a handsome brick 
fireplace adorned with molded brick trim in both egg-and-dart and Greek fret patterns. 

Other rear additions to the house, all of which had been made by the 1920s,3 include 
a butler's pantry in the space between the shed room and the brick kitchen, a second-story 
sleeping porch just above the shed room, and a porch sheltering the north gable end of 
the brick kitchen. 
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Footnotes 

1Sanborn Map Company, "Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps for Leaksvi11e-Spray, North 
Carolina" (New York: Sanborn Map Company, 1915 and 1921). Hereinafter referred as 
Sanborn maps by date. 

2 
Sanborn maps, 1908 and 1915. 

3 Sanborn maps, 1921 and 1930, and interview with Mrs. Betsy D. Nelson, present 
owner, January 21, 1982. 
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The Dem,psey-Reynolds-Taylo~ house. is an architecturally notable residence whose early 
nineteenth, late nineteenth, and early twentieth. century cOlIJP<;>nents ~e~lect j:.ts long and 
locally significant history. The o~tginal sectipn o~ the house is an early-nineteenth~ 
century fra.me block which retains much of its original Federal style ~nterior finish. 
Behind this section is a one-and-a-half story brick structu~e, probably erected during 
the early nineteenth century, that 1Qay be a rare surviVing eiarqple of a detached kitchen. 
A two-and-a,-half e-tc)'~y, single-pile. f~BJIle section was added to the original frame section 
neAr the close of the nineteenth century. The two-a.nd-a-half'$tory section, which is now 
the house's' m~tn block, is a fine and well-preserved specirqen of vernacular Italianate 
and Queen Anne destgn. The house received a series of rear 'additions dUring the first 
decades- of the twentieth century and attained its,present size by the early 1920s .. The 
older portion of the house was' butlt in th,e 1820s by Dubartes Dem,psey.. He sold this 
house to Dr. Anthony :a. Johns .. in 1835. Johns Wet,s the first of three Leaksyille physicians 
to occupy th,e re.s:tdence. In 1850 he ~ld t,t to Dr. Thomas Reynolds. The house remains 
in the hand~ of Reynolds' des'cenda'uts. Dr ..Reynolds and his wife Sarah Fewe1 Reynolds 
had five children. Two of these, Charles A. Reynolds and John Fewe1 Reynolds, were 
prominent figures in the Republican party in North Carolina in the late' nineteenth and 
early twentieth centur:,les. ·Cha,rleeR.eynold$ served as the ~tate's lieutenantgoyernQr 
from, 1897 until 19-01, while, his brother served three terms in the legisla,tul"e.· Their 
sister Elizabeth Dearing R.eynolds ~r~ied Dr. Th.~s Graves Taylor in 1880. The Taylor 
fam.ily 0ota;lned possess;l(!)n of the house f~om her brothers. Dr. and Mrs. Taylor had 
s~ children. ~ong these were Thomas Reynolds Taylor who becqrne vice-pres~dent of the 
A.n\erican Tobacc,Q COJI\pany, and M,artha Reynold$ Davison, a, ,prorqinent 'JIJUsician. 

Criteria A~sess~ent: 

A. A~soci&ted wtth the n~neteenth century devlopment of Leaksville (now a part of Eden). 

B. Associated with three Leaksville physicians, Dr. Anthony Johns, Dr. Thomas E. Reynolds, 
and Dr. Tho~as Graves Taylor. Associated with Charles A. Reynolds and John Fewel 
Reynolds, prom.inent figures in the North Carolina Republican Party during the late 
nineteenth and early twentieth centuries. 

C. Embodies distinctive characteristics of the early nineteenth century Federal style 
and the late nineteenth century Queen Anne and Italianate styles. 
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The Dempsey-Reynolds-Taylor House is located in the Rockingham County town of Eden 
(formerly Leaksville), a few miles south of the Virginia-North Carolina border. l The 
older portion of the house was built in the early l820s by Dubartes Dempsey, while the 
main portion was built in the latter part of the nineteenth century by Dr. Thomas Taylor. 
For over a century the house has been associated with the prominent Reynolds-Taylor 
families. 

Dubartes Dempsey was a native of Virginia. He moved to Rockingham County in the 
l820s and purchased a lot in Leaksville from James Barnett in 1821 for $80. 2 His house 
was built probably a short time later. Little is known about Dempsey, who sold his 
house and lot to Dr. Anthony B. Johns in 1835. 3 Dr. Johns paid $550 for the property. 
He became the first of three physicians to live in the house. He and his wife, the former 
Elizabeth Reeves of Leaksville, had at least three children, including Anthony B. Johns, 
Jr., who also became a physician. 4 

In 1850 Johns sold his house and lot to another physician, Dr. Thomas E. Reynolds, 
for $550. 5 Reynolds (1819-1872) was the sixth of eleven children born to Pryor Reynolds 
and Prudence Morehead Reynolds. Pryor Reynolds was a native of Henry County, Virginia. 
In 1809 he married Rockingham County native Prudence Morehead. She was the sister of 
John Motley Morehead, the noted progressive politician who served as North Carolina's 
governor from 1841 u~til 1845. The Reynolds family was living in Lawrence County, Vir­
ginia when Thomas was born. However, the family moved to North Carolina and Thomas 
studied medicine in Greensboro, before attending Philadelphia's prestigious Jefferson 
Medical College, from where he graduated .. Reynolds established a medical practice in 
the western Rockingham County town of Madison before moving himself and his family to 
Leaksville. In 1847 he married Rockingham County native Sarah Jane Fewel (1831-1870). 
They had five children. Charles Albert was born in 1848, Lelia Blance in 1851, Eliza­
beth Dearing in 1853, Thomas Edwin in 1856, and John Fewel in 1858. Lelia died in 
infancy. Of the four children who grew to maturity, three were born in the Leaksville 
house and all four were raised there. 6 

Sarah Reynolds died in 1870 at the age of 39. Thomas Reynolds was forced to give 
up his medical practice about this time~because of ill health. He then went into the 
mercantile business. The 1870 census lists Reynolds as the owner of real estate valued 
at $2,000 and a personal estate also valued at $2,000. He died in 1872 at the age of 
53. The house remained in the hands of the children, however. The three sons moved to 
Winston in the 1880s, while Elizabeth married and became the owner of the house. 7 

Charles Reynolds, the first of the Reynolds children, graduated from Princeton 
University. He moved to Winston around 1882 and became one of North Carolina I s leading 
Republican politicians. Reynolds served as postmaster of Winston for twelve years. 
In 1896 he was elected lieutenant governor of the state. That election also saw the 
election of Daniel L. Russell as governor. Russell and Reynolds were the only Repub­
licans to hold these offices in North Carolina between the end of political Reconstruc­
tion and the 1970s. In 1904 Reynolds ran for the United States Congress in the fifth 
district but was defeated by W. W. Kitchin. Reynolds served as state chairman of the 
Republican party on several occasions and also represented North Carolina as p member 
of the National Committee of that party. Charles Reynolds was also a construction 
engineer in Winston and in that capacity helped build a hydro-electric plant on the 
Yadkin River that was the first such plant in the state and helped construct the 
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first macadamized road in Forsyth County. He continued to be a firm advocate of good 
roads for the rest of his career. During the First World War he served on Forsyth 
County's draft board. He and his wife, the former Carrie Fretwell had no children. 8 

Charles Reynolds's brother John F. Reynolds was also a prominent Republican figure 
in the state. He was educated at Mount Airy Academy before studying for the law at the 
Greensboro legal school run by Judges Robert Paine Dick 'and John H. Dillard, both of 
whom had been members of the North Carolina Supreme Court. Reynolds obtained a law 
degree in 1883 and set up a practice in Leaksville. He moved to Winston in the 1880s 
and became involved in the tobacco business. He was elected to the General Assembly 
from Forsyth County in 1889, and to the State Senate in 1891. From 1897 to 1913 he 
was deputy internal revenue collector in Winston. He moved back to Rockingham County 
after World War One and was elected to the North Carolina Sen~te from that county in 1929. 
In 1930 he ran for United States Congress on the Republican ticket but was defeated. He 
married Maude Wall in 1890. They had one child, Maude Reynolds, who taught art and 
music in Rockingham schools for many years. 9 

Thomas Edwin Reynolds lived in Leaksville until around 1882 when he moved to Winston. 
Later he purchased a large farm on the Deep River, south of Colfax. He became a sub­
stantial land owner in Forsyth, Stokes, and Guilford counties. He spent his last years 
in Leaksville, where he died in 1933. 10 

Elizabeth Dearing Reynolds married Dr. Thomas Graves Taylor in 1880. They gradually 
gained legal title to the property and built the Italianate-Queen Anne addition. Dr. 
Taylor was a native of Mayo, Virginia, the' son of Reverend Daniel G. Taylor and Martha 
King Taylor. In 1877 he graduated with a medical degree from the University of Kentucky. 
He came to Leaksville that same year and established a medical practice which he maintained 
most of his life. He was also a mayor of Leaksville, a member of the school board and a 
deacon in the Baptist church. They had six children: Thomas was born in 1881, Sarah in 
1883, Martha in 1885, Charles in 1887, Ann in 1889, and Daniel in 1891. Mrs. Reynolds 
died in 1937 and Dr. Reynolds died in t 1945. 11 The three Taylor sons deeded their inter­
ests in the house to the three daugbters. 12 Charles and Daniel Taylor were both pharma­
cists, the former in Goldsboro and Jacksonville and the latter in Rockingham County.13 
Thomas Taylor was a banker before becoming vice-president and director of the American 
Tobacco Company. He lived in New York much of this time and died in Florida in 1945. 14 

All three Taylor daughters lived in the house at various times. Anne Taylor, the 
only one of the three not to marry, made the house her residence until her death in 1980. 
She was a school teacher. Elizabeth married Bethel Withers, a Wentworth salesman. She 
was a school teacher. She lived at the Leaksville home after the death of her husband. 
Mrs. Withers was also a schoolteacher. Martha married Hugh Elias Davison of Goldsboro. 
She lived in Leaksville from around 1925 to her death in 1971. Mrs. Davison was educated 
at Stephens College in Columbia and at Raleigh's Meredith College. She was an accom­
plishedmusician and a well known songwriter. Her daughter Mrs. Betsy Nelson has lived 
in the Dempsey-Taylor-Reynolds House since 1974. Mrs. Nelson is the house's sole 
occupant. 15 

The Dempsey-Reynolds-Taylor House has been associated with figures of significance 
in a number of areas. Three of its owners have been physicians, while other ~embers of 
the various households have distinguished themselves in politics, education, business, 
and engineering. The house is one of Rockingham County's most historically important 
structures. 
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lIn 1967 the three Rockingham County towns of Leaksvi11e, Spray, and Draper merged 
to form Eden. William S. Powell, The North Carolina Gazetteer (Chapel Hill: The 
University of North Carolina Press, 1968), 157. 

2Rockingham County Deed Book W, p. 19,8. 

3Rockingham County Deed Book 2G, p. 1. 

4Seventh Census of the United States, 1850, Rockingham County, North Carolina, 
Population Schedule; Eighth Census of the United States, 1860 1 Rockingham County, 
North Carolina, Population Schedule. 

5Rockingham County Deed Book 2Q, p. 293. 

6 John Fewel Reynolds, Genealogical Sketches of Reynolds, Fewels, Walls, and 
Kindred Families (Winston-Salem: Commercial Printers, 1923), 5, 8, 11, 15, herein­
after cited as Reynolds, Genealogical Sketches; North Carolina Biography, Volumes IV, 
V, and VI of History of North Carolina by R. D. W. Connor, William Boyd, J. G. de 
Roulhac Hamilton, and others (Chicago and New York: Lewis Publishing Company, 
6 volumes, 1919), IV, 49, hereinafter cite? as North Carolina Biography. 

7Reynolds, Genealogical Sketches, 11, 15; Ninth Census of the United States, 1870, 
Rockingham County, North Carolina, Population Schedule; Rockingham County Will Book E, 
p. 42. 

8Reynolds, Genealogical Sketches, 15-16; Winston-Salem Journal, July 3, 1936; 
Adelaide L. Fries and others, Forsxth 'County: A County on the March (Chapel Hill: 
The University of North Carolina Press, 1949), 154-157. The election of a Republican 
governor and lieutenant governor in 1896 was due largely to the defection of large 
numbers of disaffected Democrats into a third party, the Populists. By 1900 most 
of the Populists were back into the Democratic Party, which regained its customary 
dominance in the state. 

9 NOFth Carolina Biography, Iv, 49-50; John L. Cheney, Jr. (ed.), North Carolina 
Government, 1585-1974 (Raleigh: North Carolina Department of the Secretary of State, 
1975), 468, 469, 505; Greensboro Daily News, April 11, 1936. 

10 Reynolds, Genealogical Sketches, 16; Greensboro Daily News, November 29, 1933. 

llTwelfth Census of the United States, 1900, Rockingham County, North Carolina, Popu­
lation Schedule; Reynolds, Genealogical Sketches, 11; Greensboro Daily News, October 18, 
1937, April 18, 1945; Rockingham County Deed Book 4B, p. 361. Rockingham County Will 
Book H, p. 212. 

l2Rockingham County Deed Book 334, p. 316; Book 364, p. 89; Book 364, p. 630; 
and Book 366, p. 278. 
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NOTES (continued) 

l3Telephone interview with Mrs. Betsy Nelson, March 12, 1982, notes in file, 
hereinafter cited as Nelson interview. 

14 
Nelson interview; Winston Salem Journal, April 1, 1945. 

15 
Nelson interview; The Eden News, August 25, 1971. 
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